Frequently Asked Questions

For

Theater Business Clearance

Why is Theater Business Clearance (TBC) necessary? TBC enables in theater visibility of contract personnel and materiels arriving in theater through commercial transportation (FOB Destination).  Here are a few of recent operational challenges:

· CONUS contracting officers were authorizing routine medical care without proper coordination leading to over tasked military treatment facilities.

· AOR is unable to confirm whether armed personnel had the proper training, licenses, and authorizations.

· Sensitive items were shipped without proper in theater transit visibility.

· Contracts are awarded without incorporating and or complying with in theater operational orders, policy and contract clauses.

· We couldn’t ensure that local nationals were being provided opportunities to offer on or work on all DoD contracts.

· As the largest DoD contracting organization in the theater, virtually every question about “contractors” come to us, whether it is a JCC-I/A contract or not.  

· Some in-theater locations are unable to provide life support- such as billeting, dining, MWR, laundry, etc, yet more contractors were arriving every day with these services authorized.   

Why is it for all deliveries in Iraq? Deliveries via the Defense Transportation System (DTS) to the final destination are exempt from TBC.  Commercial transportation into and within theater continues to be a problem.  We might know some people or procedures that can help get the item to the war fighter sooner.

What contract documents do we need to submit? We need to see any document that has incorporated our mandatory language, such as the solicitation and SOW/PWS.  If there are other documents or attachments that help us resolve our concerns about authorized life support (billeting, dining, laundry, MWR, etc), security, weapons, medical care, and shipping instructions please include them.  Please do not include extra documents that do not pertain to delivery or performance in Iraq, such as CDRLs.    

Do I need to fill in all columns of the TBC Pre-award and Post Award Tracker?  You do not have to fill in all columns when submitting with a pre-award TBC.  Please fill in as much information as you can.  We use the pre-award information to keep track of all the actions we are reviewing and as a placeholder in our database.  After award, please update this same worksheet and resubmit it to our mailbox.  We will update our spreadsheet (remove the placeholder) and use the information to keep our contracting officers and warfighters informed about in-theater actions.  

When is an Agency required to submit a contract to JCCI for review?  Currently we are reviewing contracts at all stages—awarded, when award is imminent, and also at the pre-solicitation stage.  We are seeing mostly pre-award requests, which after a period of time we will review only pre-award actions.  However, Contracting Officers are reminded that already awarded actions with delivery or performance in Iraq or Afghanistan need TBC and may require modification to be in compliance.  Also, we can provide past performance information on many contractors, so please be in touch if you need us.  Final, after award of approved action and for actions currently awarded to the theater, contracting officers must submit the TBC Pre-Award and Post Award Tracker (all columns filled in) so that we keep informed with the latest information.  
Does the "Contracting Officer’s Guide to Special Contract Requirements for Iraq-Afghanistan Theater Business Clearance" replace the "JCC-I/A Acquisition Instructions" for non-JCC-I/A contracting officers?  The "Contracting Officer’s Guide to Special Contract Requirements for Iraq-Afghanistan Theater Business Clearance” was created just for Theater Business Clearance.  Non-JCC-I/A contracting officers do not need to read the JCC-I/A acquisition instruction.  

Is Theater Business Clearance required for urgent tasks? Yes.  JCC-I/A is postured to provide quick TBC by exception.  Just let us know it is urgent and it goes to the top of the stack.  However, it is imperative that contracting activities provide non-emergency requests for review early in the acquisition process to avoid impact to acquisition schedules.  
What is the status of my clearance?   Our required turn around is 4 business days from the submittal of the final required document.  We do try to give you preliminary comments to resolve even if we are waiting for omitted documents or need to request other documents.  

Frequently Used Comments/Questions from the JCC-I/A Reviewers:

Why is this action limited to US Nationals only? Please provide any documentation that supports the decision to exclude local nationals from participating in performance of the contract action.   Theater policies in Iraq and Afghanistan encourage the use of local nationals to the maximum extent practicable.

Ensure your Letters of Authorization do not authorize routine medical care.  Contracting officers often use general statements on LOAs such as “Medical/Dental Authorized” which can be interpreted as authorizing routine care.  Contracting officers must ensure LOAs clearly state “Emergency medical/dental care only.”

  

Who authorized routine medical care?  The contracting officer cannot authorize routine care without authorization from a CENTCOM, Iraq or Afghanistan medical official.   We can assist so point out this need in your TBC.  The contracting officer must provide the rationale for requesting routine care.  

Who authorized life support (billeting, dining, laundry, MWR, etc)? 

Neither the contracting officer nor the COR can authorize life support without approval from an official at the place of performance in Iraq or Afghanistan.  The in-theater customer should coordinate for this approval with the FOB (Forward Operating Base) Mayor Cell.  Provide us with the name and contact information of the official in the Mayor cell or other organization who approved life support.  
